
AB
SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL COMMUNITIES

MONDAY 16 MARCH 2015
7.00 PM

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declaration of Interest and Whipping Declarations

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council. 
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration.

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 12 January 2015 3 - 8

4. East Coast Main Line (ECML) Level Crossing Closure Programme 9 - 24

5. Update on Superfast Broadband in Rural Areas 25 - 26

6. Keeping Rural Communities Safe 27 - 30

7. Developing a Rural Vision and Parish Charter for Peterborough 31 - 42

8. Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 43 - 66

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take 
photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the 
public. A protocol on this facility is available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%
20Recording.pdf

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Dania Castagliuolo on 01733 452347 as soon as possible.

Public Document Pack

%5Cdemapp01
%5Cdemapp01


Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Committee Members:

Councillors: J Stokes (Chair), R Brown (Vice Chairman), D Sanders, E Murphy, D Harrington, 
J Okonkowski and J R Fox

Substitutes: Councillors: J Johnson, S Lane, B Rush and A Miners

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Dania Castagliuolo on telephone 
01733 452347 or by email – dania.castagliuolo@peterborough.gov.uk



AB
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE

SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL COMMUNITIES 
HELD IN THE

BOURGES & VIERSEN ROOMS, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH
ON 12 JANUARY 2015

Present:

Also Present:

Councillors Stokes (Chairman), Peach, Sanders, Harrington, Murphy, 
Okonkowski and J Fox.

Councillor Peter Hiller       Cabinet Member for Planning & Housing Services 
Joe Dobson                       Independent Co-opted Member
Keith Leivesley                  Independent Co-opted Member 

Officers in 
Attendance: Cate Harding 

Belinda Child
Adrian Chapman

Robin Sissons
Jonathan Lewis

Jo Gresty
Dania Castagliuolo

Community Capacity Manager 
Head of Housing and Health Improvement 
Assistant Director for Communities and Targeted 
Services 
Head of Safer, Stronger, Supportive Communities 
Assistant Director for Education, Resources and 
Corporate Property
Farms Manager 
Democratic Services Officer

1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies were received from Councillor Brown, Councillor Peach attended as substitute. 
Apologies were also received from Councillor Sanders for the first item only. . 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations

There were no declarations of interest

3. Minutes of the Previous Meetings Held on 17 November 2014 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2014, were approved as an accurate 
record. 

4. Appointment of Co-opted Members 

The Democratic Services Officer introduced the report which requested that the Commission 
considered appointing co-opted Members to the Commission. As per the constitution Part4, 
Section 8 – Scrutiny Committee and Scrutiny Commission Procedure Rules, Paragraph 3.

3.1 The Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Commissions shall be entitled to co-opt, as non-
voting members, external representatives or otherwise invite participation from non-
members where this is relevant to their work.

The Commission was asked to agree to the appointment of the following co-opted members:

 Keith Lievesley, Ufford Parish Council 

3



 Joe Dobson, Helpston Parish Council 
 Henry Clark, Peakirk Parish Council 

ACTION AGREED

The Commission agreed to the appointment of the three co-opted members. Keith Lievesley 
and Joe Dobson joined the Commission for the remainder of the meeting as independent co-
opted members. Henry Clark had given his apologies. 

5. Strategy for the Retention and Development of the Farms Estate 

The Assistant Director of for Education, Resources and Corporate Property introduced the 
report which presented the Commission with the draft Strategy for the Retention and 
Development of the Farms Estate. 

The Commission was asked to review the proposed strategy and make comments and 
recommendations before the final version was agreed at the Sustainable Growth and 
Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee for presentation to Cabinet.

Observations and Questions were raised around the following areas:

 Members requested that the farms estate finances were briefly explained. The 
Assistant Director for Education, Resources and Corporate Property responded that 
the Farms Estate was a very valuable asset to the Council and was worth 13 – 14m. 
The Farms Estate generated £300k per year. The Council was now looking in to how 
to maximise the income from the Estate. Over the years no investment in to the Estate 
had taken place. The Strategy was going to look at different ways of operating the 
Estate, using invest to save. 

 Members referred to page 15 of the report, Objective 1 “Sale of property which is 
genuinely surplus to the opening requirements of the estate or which are not financially 
viable to retain” and queried whether this referred solely to farmland or to the combining 
of the estate. The Farms Manager responded that in some cases when dwellings were 
vacated and not viable to retain, this would be an opportunity to sell the assets. The 
Assistant Director for Education, Resources and Corporate Property added that would 
also be an opportunity for the Council use these assets in different ways to generate 
income. 

 Councillor Harrington who was a member of the working group which developed the 
draft strategy thanked all who had contributed to the development of the draft strategy. 

 Members commented that the whole process leading up to the development of the 
strategy helped to regain the trust of the tenant Farmers.

 Members commented that they were pleased that the Council had recognised the value 
of the estate and it was important to keep agriculture in Peterborough.

 Members referred to page 18 of the report, part d) Retirement of Farm Tenants. They 
were concerned regarding the retirement age of farm tenants being 65 as lots of farmers 
carried on working well in to their 70’s. The Farms Manager responded that this would 
not affect the tenant’s contract and the Council would always accommodate a tenant 
where it could.

 Councillor Murphy who was part of the Task and Finish group added that he found the 
work of the group fascinating from a cultural and historical point of view. 

 Members felt this strategy could also be valuable for inclusion within the Rural Vision 
and Strategy. 

ACTION AGREED 

The Committee noted the report and agreed the Strategy for the Retention of the Farms Estate.

4



At this point Councillor Sanders joined the meeting.

6. Developing a Rural Vision and Parish Charter for Peterborough

The Community Capacity Manager introduced the report which outlined the history and new 
approach for a refresh of the Rural Vision document, which was originally prepared in 2008. 

The Commission was asked to:

(i) Agree the framework around which the Rural Vision and Parish Charter for 
Peterborough would be developed.

(ii) Agree the draft general content of the Rural Vision in line with common themes and 
current activities within the Community Serve Programme which supported the role, 
functions and priorities of rural Parish Councils.

Observations and Questions were raised around the following areas:

 Members queried whether the final version of the document would include specifics 
around inequalities, such as Community Capacity, housing, geography and 
employment opportunities. The Community Capacity Manager responded that an 
action plan would be produced which included performance indicators to support the 
final vision document. 

 Members expressed concern with the transferring of assets over to Parish Councils, as 
they would be heavily reliant on Parish Precepts. This would limit the potential to carry 
out work or hold public events.

 Members were concerned with the lack of affordable housing in rural communities and 
suggested that something was included within the Rural Vision to encourage young 
people to remain or invest in rural areas. Members were advised that these ideas would 
be noted for inclusion within the Rural Vision. 

 Members commented that it was crucial that Parish Councils had support from 
Peterborough City Council, in order for them to make the best contributions to their 
villages. Members were advised that more expectations were being put upon Parish 
Councils and Peterborough City Council were keen to offer support and look in to how 
Parish Councils could be commissioned to deliver services. There would also be 
additional support for Parish Councils with community led planning. 

 The Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Services advised the Commission that 
the National Planning Policy Framework determined the ability for Parish Councils to 
have rural exception sites. This referred to land which would not usually be considered 
for development. This land could be used for affordable housing.  He also advised 
Members that the decision on where to include affordable housing was not made by 
the Planning Committee, it was made by the developers. 

ACTION AGREED 

The Commission noted the report and agreed to the following recommendation:

(i) Agree the framework around which the Rural Vision and Parish Charter for 
Peterborough will be developed and implemented. 

5



RECOMMENDATION 

The Commission recommended to the Assistant Director for Communities and Targeted 
Services that a special focus was contained within the Rural Vision around liveability, 
including the following subjects:

 Housing
 Transport
 Employment 
 Connectivity 

7. Keeping Rural Communities Safe 

The report was introduced by the Head of Safer, Stronger and Supportive Communities, which 
provided Members with an overview of the activities which were being and could be delivered 
in the rural areas of Peterborough, to ensure that crime levels within the rural communities 
remained relatively low. The report described which activities were already in existence and 
explored some sustainable alternatives which would maintain safety and confidence in rural 
communities, with a more local focus within a very challenging financial landscape. 

The Commission was asked to scrutinise the report, prioritise the schemes contained within 
the report and identify alternative schemes.  

The sustainable schemes for the Commission to consider were as follows:

 Rural Watch Patrols
 Rural Volunteers 
 Rural Community Investigators 
 Rural Specials 
 Employers Specials Scheme (ESP)
 Neighbourhood Warden Schemes 
 Street Leaders
 Neighbourhood Watch 
 Utilisation of existing community groups
 Regular Updates 

Observations and Questions were raised around the following areas:

 Members expressed concern with Neighbourhood Watch not being very successful in 
villages due to lack of membership and suggested it may be more appealing if it was 
called Rural Watch. The Head of Safer, Stronger and Supportive Communities 
responded that a similar scheme had been proposed within the report on page 31, part 
4.2.1, called Rural Watch Patrols. 

 The Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Services commented that the 
Neighbourhood Watch Scheme was extremely active in some villages and suggested 
it would be useful to get some tips from the successful groups.

 Members commented that they had been presented with a very good and informative 
report and queried whether the Council currently employed a Wildlife Officer. The Head 
of Safer, Stronger and Supportive Communities responded that the Council had a rural 
crime team which included a Wildlife Officer. 

 Members queried whether environmental issues were a priority for the police in rural 
areas. Members were advised that environmental crime, like all crimes, had to be 
prioritised. The Council were currently encouraging communities to become involved in 
issues as the police were working increasingly with intelligence. 

6



 Members commented that people from rural communities were lacking a dedicated 
contact to build up their trust with the police. Rural communities were no longer 
reporting incidents as they did not receive a quick response from the police.

 Members commented that they would like to see more resources being put in to rural 
communities and were concerned that to employ any of the schemes stated within the 
report, something important would have to be removed. Members were informed that 
all of the schemes would be run on a voluntary basis. 

 Members suggested that the schemes were delivered through the support of Parish 
Councils. 

 Members referred to page 32 of the report, part 4.2.5 and queried whether the 
Employers Special Scheme (ESP) worked, as not many companies could afford to let 
their employees have time off work. Members were advised that this did work because 
employers would receive a far more skilled employee. 

ACTION AGREED 

The Commission noted the Report.

RECOMMENDATION  

The Commission recommended to the Head of Safer, Stronger and Supportive Communities 
that a letter was written, on behalf of the Commission, to the two local MP’s to raise the issue 
at a national level regarding villages not having a local point of contact relating to crime and 
community safety.

8. Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 

The Commission received the latest version of the Council’s Forward Plan of Executive 
Decisions, which contained key decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the 
Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members would make during the course of the forthcoming 
month.  Members were invited to comment on the Plan and, where appropriate, identify any 
relevant areas for inclusion in the Commission’s work programme. 

ACTION AGREED

The Commission noted the latest version of the Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decision and 
requested further information on the following decisions:

 Extension to the Public Health Services Contract
 Future of Solar and Wind Projects 
 The Mobile Homes Act 2013 Fees Policy 
 Residential Care 

6. Work Programme 

Members considered the Commission’s Work Programme for 2014/15 and discussed possible 
items for inclusion.

AGREED ACTION

The Commission noted and agreed the 2014/2015 work programme. 

7. Date of the Next Meeting

The next meeting was scheduled for Monday, 16 March 2015.

7



The meeting began at 7.00pm and ended at 9.00pm     

              
     CHAIRMAN

8



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES

Agenda Item No. 4

16 MARCH 2015 Public Report

Report of the Corporate Director of Growth and Regeneration                                    

Contact Officer(s) – Theresa Nicholl and Victoria Hurrell
Contact Details – 01733 454442/453480

East Coast Main Line (ECML) Level Crossing Closure Programme

1. PURPOSE

1.1

1.2

This report is being presented at the request of the Commission to provide an update on the 
East Coast Main Line (ECML) Level Crossing Closure Programme. A report (attached at 
appendix 1) has been presented to the Planning and Environmental Protection Committee at 
the meeting held on 3 March 2015. The Committee resolved that the contents of the report and 
comments of the Committee are noted. The Committee made the following comment:

 The Committee commented that traffic modelling would be vital to ensure that any 
diverted traffic would not cause congestion in the surrounding villages. It was suggested 
that consideration should be given to the access Lolham Bridges, to ensure that the site 
did not become a ‘dumping ground’.

This report is for information only to explain the planning process.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Commission is asked to note the report as an item of information only. Responsibility for 
commenting on this item lies with the Planning and Environmental Protection Committee.

3. BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL

3.1 Network Rail (NR) proposes to close a number of level crossings on the East Coast Main Line 
(ECML) between London and Doncaster as part of a programme to make the line more efficient 
and reliable. The works will help facilitate the introduction of faster trains (125mph) thereby 
reducing journey times. The programme will also improve rail safety as a consequence of the 
removal of the crossings.

Within Peterborough, the closure of the following level crossings is proposed;

 Woodcroft (Woodcroft Road to the southeast of Helpston) – shown on plan 1
 Helpston (Glinton Road, Helpston) – shown on plan 1
 Maxey (Maxey Road, Helpston) – shown on plan 2
     Lolham Bridges and Helpston Footpath (north of B1443 and NE of Bainton –   shown                

on plan 3

5. IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no legal or financial implications for the Council as we are not the determining 
authority and the project is not being funded from the Council’s budget.

6. CONSULTATION

6.1 Network Rail, as the applicant is responsible for undertaking consultations as part of their 

9



preparation for an application to be submitted to the Secretary of State for Transport for 
determination under the Transport and Works Act.  Consultation will be on going up to and 
following the submission of this application.

7. APPENDICES

7.1 Appendix 1 – Copy of the report to the Planning and Environmental Protection Committee.

10



APPENDIX 1

Planning and EP Committee 3 March 2015 Item 6

Proposal: East Coast Main Line (ECML) Level Crossing Closure Programme

Case officer: Miss V Hurrell & Mrs T Nicholl
Telephone No. 01733 453480
E-Mail: victoria.hurrell@peterborough.gov.uk

theresa.nicholl@peterborough.gov.uk

Recommendation: Committee note the contents of the report and offer any additional 
comments it would like to make to Network Rail at this stage

1 Background and Description of the Proposal

Network Rail (NR) proposes to close a number of level crossings on the East Coast Main Line 
(ECML) between London and Doncaster as part of a programme to make the line more efficient 
and reliable. The works will help facilitate the introduction of faster trains (125mph) thereby 
reducing journey times. The programme will also improve rail safety as a consequence of the 
removal of the crossings.

Within Peterborough, the closure of the following level crossings is proposed;

 Woodcroft (Woodcroft Road to the southeast of Helpston) – shown on plan 1
 Helpston (Glinton Road, Helpston) – shown on plan 1
 Maxey (Maxey Road, Helpston) – shown on plan 2
 Lolham Bridges and Helpston Footpath (north of B1443 and NE of Bainton – shown on      

     plan 3

The attached drawings, which are for illustrative purposes only at this stage, set out alternative 
access arrangements. These are considered in more detail in section 2 of this report.

The level crossing at Tallington (outside Peterborough City Council’s (PCC) administrative area) is 
also proposed to be closed.  Network Rail are, however, including Tallington Crossing as part of 
this group of proposed crossings closures because of the cross boundary traffic/transport 
implications.

The drawings referred to have been produced by Network Rail (and their consultants) and have 
recently formed part of a recent public consultation event that included exhibitions at local villages.  
Parish Councils and residents now have the opportunity to make comments on the proposals to 
Network Rail

Later this year, Network Rail intends to submit applications under the Transport and Works Act 
1992 to the Secretary of State for Transport to obtain permission to carry out the level crossing 
closures.  These applications will be accompanied by supporting technical information including an 
Environmental Impact Assessment(s) which will cover aspects such as the landscape and visual 
impacts of the proposals and mitigation, heritage impacts, noise and vibration and ecological 
impacts (the scope of this assessment will be decided by the Secretary of State) and a Transport 
Assessment.

 Planning permission will not be required from PCC and as such PCC will not be the determining 
authority.  PCC will be a consultee as will other organisations such as English Heritage and the 
Environment Agency.  Network Rail is obliged to undertake pre-application consultation before 

11



submitting the applications which is why it is undertaking the current consultation. There will be 
further consultation as the project moves forward, prior to the submission of the applications to the 
Secretary of State.

Impacts of the closures on the highway network will be a key (if not the key) issue.  Network Rail is 
using the Peterborough Transport Model. This is the Council’s transport model which can be used 
to predict the traffic impacts of development on the road network in the context of the proposed 
growth of the city. This model is being used to assist with producing a baseline of traffic data 
together with current traffic surveys. The methodology for producing the anticipated impacts on 
traffic volumes and flows is being agreed with both PCC Highways and Lincolnshire Highways as 
the adjacent Highway Authority. Road closures to enable the closure of some crossings will likely 
impact traffic movements across a wide area and will not respect nominal boundaries. This work is 
on-going and therefore the purpose of this report is not to provide detailed comments on highways 
and traffic implications of the proposals at this stage. These will be reported to members of the 
Planning and Environmental Protection Committee at the time when the impacts have been 
identified along with the mitigation measures being proposed.  

The purpose of this report is to seek Members’ views on the comments we are able to make thus 
far in relation to each proposal and to see if Members wish to add any further comments at this 
stage.  These comments will be forwarded to Network Rail.  As already indicated there will be 
further opportunities for PCC to comment later in the process.  Once the applications are submitted 
to the Secretary of State it is likely that the proposals will go before a Public Inquiry where PCC 
and other interested persons or parties can take part.

The following comments are limited to planning matters. It is not the role of PCC as Local Planning 
Authority (LPA) to comment on individual property rights (issues such as land values, loss of 
property value, compensation etc.)  However, the Environmental Assessment will need to assess 
impact on residential amenity and the property mentioned below represents only the very nearest 
to the proposals.

2 Comments on the proposed level crossing closures (information to date)

General Comments:

 The above comments are solely based on the illustrative plans and may be subject to 
change once detailed design and the transport work is completed.

 The LPA cannot expect or request Network Rail to carry out mitigation or works that go 
beyond what is needed to make the development acceptable but does expect negative 
impacts as a result of the development to be appropriately mitigated.

 It is not the role of PCC as Local Planning Authority to comment on individual property 
rights (issues such as land values, compensation etc.).  Any compulsory purchase 
necessary would be dealt with through the Transport and Works Act process but unless 
PCC is a landowner, it will not be the role of PCC to represent third party property interests.

 Once the proposals are more refined, the LPA will re-assess against adopted development 
plan policies and report again to Committee.

Woodcroft Level Crossing (Plan 1)

Network Rail proposes to remove the level crossing at Woodcroft Road by stopping up the road at 
each side of the railway line.  A turning head will be provided at the end of each stopped up road.  
Woodcroft Road presently forms part of the Peterborough Green Wheel Cycle route.  A new Public 
Right of Way (PROW) in the form of a bridleway with cyclepath is proposed to be created from a 
point just to the south of the current level crossing and adjacent to Ram Dike.  The new PROW will 
follow the course of the dike to the northwest up to a point where the main settlement of Helpston 
begins.  It would then turn north to run along the track which runs to the rear of the properties in 
Mill Field Close and Arborfield Close, Helpston.  The PROW would join the B1443 Glinton Road in 
Helpston at the point where the proposed Helpston level crossing road diversion would begin.

12



There are several “smallholdings” many of which contain stable buildings to the north of Woodcroft 
level crossing and there is property at the crossing including Railway Cottages to the north of the 
crossing and The Bungalow to the south of the crossing.  

Comments:

 No objections in principle to the closure of this level crossing or the proposed bridleway 
route.

 The highway appears to be lightly trafficked and the closure will affect a small number of 
motorists, horse riders and perhaps some local farmers although we reserve final 
comments until the transport work is completed

 The physical impact of the works on the landscape will be minimal
 The physical impact of the works on residents will be minimal
 The new bridleway/cycleway link is welcome in principle

Helpston Level Crossing (Plan 1)

Network Rail proposes to close Helpston level crossing by stopping up the highway to either side 
of the tracks.  A new road would be provided to the south of the existing road which would bridge 
over the railway line thus removing the need for a level crossing.  The position of the proposed new 
road is shown on illustrative Plan 1.  It would commence immediately to the west of the tracks on 
the on the B1443 Glinton Road and adjacent to properties; Former Station Master’s House (97), 
97A and Nurseryman’s Cottage, Glinton Road, Helpston.  It would sweep southwards and would 
begin to rise before turning east/northeast and over the railway line, turning northwards and 
sweeping down to re-join the B1443 near to properties; The Elms (north side of Helpston Road), 
Glenderry, Helpston Road and 1 Helpston Road, Etton.  The rise of the new road would be 
mounded on either side of the railway line.  Access would be provided to existing properties.  At 
the eastern end of the new road a turning spur would be provided for access to properties fronting 
the B1443 as stopped up.  A footpath cycleway will be provide alongside the new road.

Comments:

 In principle, the closure would be supported subject to traffic and other issues being 
adequately dealt with because the level crossing causes lengthy delays.

 The new road will be highly visible in the flat landscape, however, any raised road in this 
location will be highly visible. There are other bridge structures in the general area.

 The indicative route appears to be a reasonable compromise between unnecessary 
incursion of a highly visible road into the open countryside and minimising impact on nearby 
listed buildings namely 86 Glinton Road (adjacent the level crossing) and the Grain store 
(café accessed off a track adjacent the level crossing), and impact on residential amenity

 We expect the environmental statement to accompany the application (to the Secretary of 
State) to include a detailed noise and visual amenity report into the impact of the 
development upon the nearest properties and appropriate mitigation to be provided where 
necessary (taking into account heritage assets).  

Maxey Level Crossing (Maxey Road, Helpston) Plan 2
The proposal is to close the Maxey level crossing at Maxey Road on the edge of Helpston.  The 
road would be stopped up at either side of the tracks.  It is proposed to put a new bridleway bridge 
to the west of the level crossing that will bridge over the tracks.  The bridge would be landscape 
bunded to the north and south of the tracks.  It will not be open to through traffic but would be 
gated to allow access only to farmers/landowners who own land in the immediate vicinity and 
emergency services/network rail operatives.  The new bridge will allow access to Crossing 
Cottages located to the north of the tracks.  There is residential property to the south and east of 
the point where the bridge would turn west off Maxey Road, including a site currently being 
developed for housing.

13



The site of the new bridge would partially lie within Flood Zone 2 and the outer buffer of a gas 
pipeline.  The bridge over the south drain (just to the south of the level crossing) is grade II listed.

Comments:

 Maxey Road is moderately trafficked during the week, less so at weekends.  The transport 
assessment will need to demonstrate that the closure of Maxey Road to through traffic will 
not lead to unacceptable increases in traffic in other villages and on minor roads and that 
impacts are properly mitigated (further comment can only be made once the transport 
proposals are clearer).  Subject to this (and other details being acceptable), the principle of 
closing this level crossing and closing Maxey Road to through traffic is supported.

 The bridge will be highly visible locally but its position is logical given the constraints.
 We expect the environmental statement to accompany the application (to the Secretary of 

State) to include a detailed noise and visual amenity report into the impact of the 
development upon the nearest properties and appropriate mitigation to be provided where 
necessary (taking into account heritage assets). 

 There will be some impact upon the amenity of existing properties, especially a new 
development of 5 houses but this impact is considered to be within acceptable limits given 
the limited amount of traffic which will use the bridge. 

 The submission must set out how flood prevention and surface water matters will be 
adequately dealt with 

 The setting of the listed bridge will need to be properly considered in the environmental 
statement

Lolham Bridges level crossing and Helpston Footpath Crossing (plan 3)

The proposal is to close the level crossing at Lolham Bridges by stopping up the road to the north 
and south of the tracks thus closing this route to through traffic (see Helpston Footpath below for 
footpath links).  A turning area would be provided to the north of the tracks and a car park will be 
created to the south of the tracks (adjacent to the new Helpston Footpath bridge).  There are 
several constraints at this site;  Lolham Bridges are both a scheduled monument and grade II* 
listed, which makes them of national significance; Maxey Cut lies just to the north of the level 
crossing (running east-west) and South drain runs east-west to the south of the level crossing.  
The former Bainton Quarry pit lagoons are to the west of the level crossing. The area is within flood 
zones 2 and 3.  

The highway passing over Lolham Bridges links the A1175 in the north (at West Deeping) with the 
B1443 to the south.  For the status of this highway it is heavily trafficked and it seems apparent 
that the route is used as a “rat run.”

Currently the Helpston Footpath 1 crosses over the tracks just to the southeast of Lolham Bridges 
adjacent to the point where South Drain passes underneath the tracks.  Helpston Footpath 1 
continues to the east through fields towards Helpston and also southerly, along the road.  For 
practical purposes it joins with Bainton Footpath 5 which runs to the northwest alongside Maxey 
Cut.  It is proposed to replace this footpath crossing with a new ramped and stepped bridleway 
bridge.  This would ensure that the footpath, bridleway and cycle links at this site are maintained.  

Comments:

 The closure of the level crossing and the route to through traffic will divert the existing traffic 
elsewhere. The traffic modelling must provide a robust “picture” of where this traffic will be 
diverted to. There are presently concerns that this traffic will be diverted to and through 
other villages where any significant increases in traffic will be inappropriate/unacceptable.  
We will expect diverted traffic to be encouraged to use major routes. Further comment 
cannot be made until the outcome of the on-going traffic modelling and proposed mitigation 
is known.

14



 Linked to the above point, any mitigation to deal with any ‘diverted’ traffic will need to 
consider the historical context of the area to ensure that it is appropriate from a heritage 
perspective. 

 It is agreed that the constraints of the area around Lolham Bridges, particularly the 
scheduled monument and grade II* status of the bridges, mean that it would be 
inappropriate to construct a new road to accommodate through traffic as is proposed at 
Helpston, as this would have an adverse impact upon the setting of the Bridges. The 
surrounding water environment would mean that such a structure would be a very 
significant and dominant feature in a sensitive landscape.  As such the principle of a 
bridleway/cycleway bridge only is supported (if in terms of the traffic issues noted above, 
the impacts of the closure can be appropriately mitigated).

 The creation of a new footbridge will create an intrusion into the landscape and will to an 
extent affect the historic setting of the bridges.  More comment will be made once a detailed 
design is produced.  It is accepted that removing significant traffic from the scheduled 
monument will be beneficial to its preservation. It is accepted that the design of the bridge 
will need to ensure it functions for riders, cyclists and walkers.  However, given the setting a 
utility type structure should be avoided where possible and the bridge should be of the 
highest design and quality that is possible.

 The creation of a car park for people wishing to visit the Lolham Bridges area is welcome, 
however there are some concerns about possible mis-use of the car park and it is 
considered that entry to the car park will need to be managed.

7 Recommendation

That Members endorse the comments set out above and report any further comment they wish to 
make at the meeting in order that officers can forward the comments to Network Rail on behalf of 
PCC as Local Planning Authority.

 

15



This page is intentionally left blank

16



LOCATION 
PLAN

17



This page is intentionally left blank

18



OS Location Plan

OVERVIEW

Jan 201570000382-LX107-EXB2-01 B

KEYPreferred Option

Existing level crossing
to be closed

Close Helpston crossing and construct a new
highway bridge approximately 250m south of the
existing crossing to minimise the length of
diversion. The new bridge will include a 3m wide
footway/cycleway shared surface providing a
segregated route to the east of Helpston.

Close Woodcroft crossing and divert users of the
Peterborough Greenwheel cycle network via
Helpston bridge and a dedicated new public
bridleway/cycle path between Glinton Road and
Woodcroft Road.
Existing route between start and end of diversion =
850metres.
Proposed diversion route = 2.5km.

An indicative level of temporary construction tra�c
is likely to average 30 to 40 vehicles per day over
the period of construction.

Helpston and Woodcroft are public highway level crossings on the
East Coast Main Line. It is proposed to close both level crossings
on the East Coast Main Line (ECML). We recognise Helpston level
crossing is a vital link road serving the Helpston community and
propose to provide a new bridge over the ECML to preserve
existing highway links for all users.

Woodcroft public highway (unclassi�ed) level crossing forms part
of the Peterborough Green Wheel (Region Route 21) cycle
network. We are seeking to close Woodcroft crossing and provide
an alternative route for the Peterborough Greenwheel cycle
network.

Access to the railway at the level crossing will be prevented with
the provision of new fencing. Locked access may be retained for
Network Rail and emergency access.

Helpston Level Crossing User Census - March/April 2014

User
Average Weekday

Daily Users
Average Weekend

Daily Users

Vehicles 3082 2488
Cyclists 114 111

Horse Riders 0 0

Pedestrians 23 27

Preferred option shown is illustrative and for consultation purposes
only.

EAST COAST MAIN LINE
LEVEL CROSSING CLOSURE PROGRAMME ( FEASIBILITY STUDY )
HELPSTON AND WOODCROFT PREFERRED OPTION [Ref: HLP]

Proposed landscaped
earthworks

Proposed new carriageway

Proposed grassed highway
verge

Proposed footway/cycleway

Helpston

To Etton

To Woodcroft Castle

To A15

Helpston Level
Crossing

Woodcroft
Level Crossing

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution
or civil proceedings.
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100016037 & 0100040692.

B1443 diverted
via new bridge
over the ECML

Access to existing
properties
(reduced width)

East Coast Main Line

Maxey

Helpston

Woodcroft

EXISTING LEVEL CROSSING

LOOKING EAST

Proposed Woodcroft diversion route
over new dedicated Public Right of
Way: Bridleway and cycle route

Woodcroft level crossing
diversion route. Provide
dedicated new Public Rights
of Way: Bridleway with cycle
path provision.

Lolham &
Helpston FP

2
1

Footpath Helpston 2

Highway to be
stopped up

Public highway to be retained
for access to properties

Drainage basin with
outfall to existing ditch

Area for drainage
attenuation
basin/pond and
landscape mitigation

Landscape
screening

Temporary construction
compound. Permanent
area for drainage
balancing ponds and
landscape mitigation

3m shared cycleway
and footway
alongside new road

Ditch to be culverted
under embankment

Provide access to
existing properties

Existing road to be
stopped-up

Area for landscape
and ecology

Culvert ditch to
connect bridleway to
Woodcroft Road

Indicative temporary
construction compound area

Landscaped screening and
Ecology mitigation area

A
A

INDICATIVE CROSS SECTION AT A-A

Drainage basin with
outfall to existing ditch

Culverted ditch
crossing

Turning head to
Woodcroft Road
adjacent to level
crossing

Pedestrian
crossing point

Possible speed
restraints

Possible speed
restraints

Proposed Woodcroft and
Peterborough Greenwheel cycle
diversion route over Public Highway.

Woodcroft Level Crossing User Census - March/April 2014

User
Average Weekday

Daily Users
Average Weekend

Daily Users

Vehicles 32 41
Cyclists 5 35

Horse Riders 1 3

Pedestrians 0 6

1 Visualisation view point

Provide access to
existing properties

PLAN 1

19



This page is intentionally left blank

20



OVERVIEW

Jan 201570000382-LX109-EXB2-01 A

KEYPreferred Option

Existing level crossing
to be closed

Close this crossing to all tra�c and replace it with a
bridleway bridge approximately 100m west of the existing
crossing for bridleway users and authorised vehicle access
from Helpston to the Crossing Cottages, and agricultural
land immediately to the north of the crossing.

All other motor vehicle tra�c to follow diversion routes via
existing public highway and new bridge crossings at
Helpston and Tallington.

An indicative level of contemporary construction tra�c is
likely to average 30-40 vehicles per day over the period of
construction.

This is currently a public highway level crossing. We are seeking to
close this  level crossing on the East Coast Main Line (ECML). We
recognise full closure of this crossing will sever access between
Helpston and Crossing Cottages, and the wider countryside to the
north, so we propose to provide a new bridleway bridge crossing
over the ECML with limited vehicle access rights for essential users
only.

Access to the railway at the level crossing will be prevented with the
provision of new fencing. Locked access may be retained for
Network Rail and emergency access.

Maxey Level Crossing User Census - March/April 2014

User
Average Weekday

Daily Users
Average Weekend

Daily Users

Vehicles 502 381
Cyclists 17 52

Horse Riders 0 0

Pedestrians 8 9

Preferred option shown is illustrative and for consultation purposes
only.

EAST COAST MAIN LINE
LEVEL CROSSING CLOSURE PROGRAMME ( FEASIBILITY STUDY )

MAXEY PREFERRED OPTION [Ref: MAX]

Proposed landscaped
earthworks
Proposed new carriageway

Proposed grassed highway verge

Helpston

Maxey
Level Crossing

dao
R yexa

M

To
Maxey

East Coast Main Line

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution
or civil proceedings.
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100016037 & 0100040692.

Proposed accomodation
bridge over the ECML

Existing drain
culverted under new
embankment and
�eld access track

EXISTING LEVEL CROSSING

LOOKING NORTH

Tallington

Maxey
Helpston

Casewick

OS Location Plan

Woodcroft

EXISTING LEVEL CROSSING

LOOKING SOUTH

Lolham &
Helpston FP

Gated vehicle access,
bridleway traffic routed
around gates

Passing place

Gated vehicle access,
bridleway traffic routed
around gates

Passing place

Passing place

Area for �ood compensation

Drainage
attenuation basin
with out�ow to
existing ditch

Area for temporary
construction compound
and permanent landscape
screening, ecology
mitigation and flood
compensation

Passing place

A

A

Culverted ditch

Vehicle speed
reduction feature

Vehicle speed
reduction feature

Crossing
cottages

Proposed alternative farm access

Proposed �eld
access track

INDICATIVE CROSS SECTION AT A-A

Speed reduction feature

Indicative construction
compound area

Proposed drainage features

Vehicle turning head
to Maxey Road

2

1

Landscaped screening and
Ecology mitigation area

Vehicle turning head
to Maxey Road

Drainage
attenuation basin
with out�ow to
existing ditch

1 Visualisation view point

PLAN 2

21



This page is intentionally left blank

22



OS Location Plan

OVERVIEW

Jan 201570000382-LX113-EXB2-01 A

KEYPreferred Option

Existing level crossing
to be closed

Close Lolham and Helpston Footpath crossings to all tra�c
and construct new stepped and ramped pedestrian/cycle
footbridge over the ECML at Helpston Footpath crossing.

Provide a new bridleway/cycleway link from Lolham to new
bridge crossing over the ECML at Helpston Footpath.

Vehicular users to follow local diversion routes via existing
public highway and new bridge crossings at Tallington and
Helpston.

An indicative level of temporary construction is likely to
average 10 to 20 vehicles per day over the period of
construction.

It is proposed to close Lolham public highway (unclassi�ed) level crossing and Helpston
Footpath public footpath on the East Coast Main Line (ECML). Lolham crossing is located
adjacent to a number of Scheduled Monument highway bridges over Maxey Cut. We are keen
to preserve the historic character of these structures and minimise the impact of any new bridge
structure over the ECML in this location.

We propose to provide a new bridleway bridge over the ECML at Helpston Footpath crossing to
preserve recreational access with additional vehicle turning and car parking provision both
sides of the crossing. Vehicle diversion routes will be implemented via new road bridges at
Tallington and Helpston.

Access to the railway at the level crossings will be prevented with provision of new fencing.
Locked access may be retained for Network Rail and emergency access.

Lolham Level Crossing User Census - March/April 2014

User
Average Weekday

Daily Users
Average Weekend

Daily Users

Vehicles 1724 1248
Cyclists 40 90

Horse Riders 0 1

Pedestrians 2 10

Preferred option shown is illustrative and for consultation purposes only.

EAST COAST MAIN LINE
LEVEL CROSSING CLOSURE PROGRAMME ( FEASIBILITY STUDY )
LOLHAM AND HELPSTON F.P PREFERRED OPTION [Ref: LOL]

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution
or civil proceedings.
© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100016037 & 0100040692.

Maxey

Helpston

Woodcroft

EXISTING LOLHAM LEVEL CROSSING

LOOKING SOUTH

East Coast Main Line

Proposed bridleway/cycle route

Upgrade existing
hardstanding to turning area
and additional car parking.
This will also act as a
temporary construction area

Existing footpath

Lolham &
Helpston FP

Footpath Helpston 1

Footpath Bainton 5
Footpath H

elpston 1

Creation of hard standing
carpark area and temporary
construction area

EXAMPLE FOOTBRIDGE VISUALISATION

Upgraded existing footpath to bridleway

Proposed dedicated
bridleway with cycle
provision

Indicative construction
compound area

Proposed car parking area on hard
standing/temporary construction compound

Helpston Footpath
Level Crossing

Lolham
Level Crossing

Upgrade existing cyclepath

Lolham Bridges
Scheduled Monuments

Lolham Bridges
Scheduled Monuments

Ramped and stepped
bridleway bridge

PLAN 3

23



This page is intentionally left blank

24



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES

Agenda Item No. 5

16 MARCH 2016 Public Report

Report of the Executive Director of Strategic Resources                                    

Contact Officer(s) – Richard Godfrey, Assistant Director: Digital Peterborough
Contact Details – richard.godfrey@peterborough.gov.uk  / tel: 01733 317989

UPDATE ON SUPERFAST BROADBAND IN RURAL AREAS

1. PURPOSE

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities with an 
update on Superfast Broadband in Rural Areas, following a request made by the Commission.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Commission is requested to endorse the work undertaken as part of Connecting 
Cambridgeshire to deliver Superfast broadband and to acknowledge the investment made by 
Gigaclear in providing a number of villages with fibre broadband connectivity.

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

3.1 The link to the Sustainable Community Strategy is by helping in ‘delivering substantial and truly 
sustainable growth’.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

Cambridgeshire County Council and Peterborough City Council are the lead authorities 
responsible for delivering the Connecting Cambridgeshire project. 

Following a competitive procurement process Connecting Cambridgeshire signed a contract 
with BT in March 2013. The contract means that Peterborough and Cambridgeshire will have 
some of the best fibre broadband in the country by the end of 2015.

Connecting Cambridgeshire is working closely with BT to ensure that the roll-out of better 
broadband is undertaken in the most cost effective manner to ensure best use of public money. 

Over 30% of the Peterborough Intervention Area premises are now live with 2695 premises 
passed out of 8347. The delivery of the remaining 5652 premises will be throughout phases 5, 6 
and 7. 

Phase 5 is now underway, with phases 6 and 7 due to start in April and July respectively. 

In terms of cabinets, 16 out of a total of 78 structures are now live, with a further 38 expected by 
mid-summer. 

Take-up of superfast broadband in those areas now live is close to 20% as an average, which 
is in line with expectations. 

Combined with existing commercial broadband provision, 98 per cent of homes and businesses 
across the county can expect to have access to fibre-based broadband by the end of the 
contract. 

25

mailto:richard.godfrey@peterborough.gov.uk


4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

Gigaclear

Gigaclear is one of the fastest and most reliable broadband networks in the UK delivered only 
to rural areas of England. They deliver better broadband than is available to most towns and 
cities. With ultrafast, pure fibre broadband, available to every one of their customers, rural 
communities will be ready to meet the demands of Internet services of the future.

In June 2014 Gigaclear announced its intention to undertake a demand registration process for 
the majority of villages between Peterborough and Stamford. Subject to a 30% pre-order level 
Gigaclear would then invest in building a fibre connection to these villages. The council has not 
invested in this network and has no contract with Gigaclear.

In January 2015 Gigaclear announced that they had reached the 30% target and work has now 
started in installing the network with the first villages expected to be live in June 2015. 
Gigaclear will lay fibre past all premises in the villages allowing those residents who haven’t 
pre-registered to take a service should they wish to in due course. 

Unfortunately Marholm had a particularly low take-up of only 17% (12 out of 71 properties) and 
so the decision has been made to exclude Marholm from the first round. If demand should 
increase then this will be re-assessed. 

The introduction of Gigaclear into these villages should be seen as good for competition and 
has prompted activity increase from BT and now gives residents a wider range of options than 
they have had before. 

5. KEY ISSUES

5.1 Superfast broadband will help to boost growth and create jobs, improve our health and make 
life easier, learn new skills for success and support people who need it.

 
6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Connecting Cambridgeshire is a city-wide project and as such there are no implications for any 
individual Ward.

7. NEXT STEPS

7.1 A further update report can be presented to the Commission for Rural Communities Committee 
at an agreed date in the future. Monitoring of the Connecting Cambridgeshire project will 
continue through the Member Officer Working Board.

8. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

8.1 There were no background documents used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985.

 

26



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES

Agenda Item No. 6

16 March 2015 Public Report

Report of the Head of Housing and Health Improvement and the Head of 
Community and Safety Services

Report Author – Belinda Child and Robin Sissons
Contact Details – 01733 863769 and 07921 938092

KEEPING RURAL COMMUNITIES SAFE

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This report follows a similar but broader report that was debated by the Committee in January 
2015, and contains recommendations for progressing a smaller number of initiatives that will 
contribute to rural community safety and confidence.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the committee scrutinises the content of this report and agrees the various 
recommendations for progressing individual projects that are contained throughout this report, 
specifically at sections 4.1.3, 4.1.4 (iii), 4.2.1, 4.2.2 (iv), 4.3.2.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 In January 2015 a report was provided to members of the Scrutiny Commission for Rural 
Communities with an overview of the activities that are and could be delivered in the rural areas 
of Peterborough, to ensure that crime levels within the rural community remain relatively low and 
community confidence remains high. The report explored some sustainable alternatives that 
would maintain safety and confidence in rural communities with a more local focus within a very 
challenging financial landscape. 

3.2 During the debate in January 2015, the Committee focussed primarily on three initiatives, 
namely:

 Rural Specials (including the Employers’ Specials Scheme)
 Neighbourhood Watch including Farm Watch
 Use of volunteers (other than Specials).

3.3 This report presents some further context to these three initiatives and recommends a way 
forward for each.

4. KEY ISSUES

4.1 Rural Specials Initiative

4.1.1 The committee may be aware that Cambridgeshire Constabulary has recently launched the Rural 
Special Constable Scheme. It consists of six Special Constables (working from Police HQ) who 
will be tasked to concentrate on rural crime across the county when they are on duty. This is the 
first step and if successful it is hoped that it will be rolled out to each district.

27



4.1.2 Officers have made contact with Victor Kerlin who is the Head of Cambridgeshire Special 
Constabulary. He has provided an update stating that the initial indications are that the scheme is 
working well, although the team is relatively small when considering the scale of the area and 
size of the community that they are attempting to serve. However through being intelligence-led 
and focusing work on their priorities they have been able to make some impact. 

4.1.3 The Committee is asked to approve the recommendation for the Chair to formally approach 
Victor Kerlin and emphasise our support for the scheme. The purpose would be to make it clear 
that if there is to be an expansion then the Committee would not only support it but would 
appreciate that they start in the Peterborough area.  It would also be helpful to receive back from 
Victor ideas that the Committee might support through, for example, the new Rural Strategy to 
promote the scheme or to properly resource it.

4.1.4 Employers Special Scheme (ESP)

(i) This scheme seeks to develop partnerships between employers, their staff and 
Cambridgeshire Constabulary. It would ask companies to encourage their members to 
become volunteer Special Constables and (depending upon the individual circumstances 
of the organisation) agree to further support their staff members by assisting them in the 
performance of their duties. An example would be agreeing to allow the volunteer to do 4 
hours of duty in the company’s time if they have already done 16 voluntary hours.

(ii) A number of businesses in the Peterborough area have already been approached and the 
initial action has been positive. This includes the city council, Cross Keys Homes and the 
BGL Group. 

(iii) The Committee is asked to approve the recommendation that officers, during the next few 
months, deliver a number of recruitment presentations initially to local rural businesses in 
order to promote this initiative. Whilst this will be led by the Special Constabulary, the 
Safer Peterborough Partnership would support and give assistance where necessary.

4.2 Neighbourhood Watch including Farm Watch

4.2.1 Rural Watch Patrols

(i) Countryside Watch and Farm Watch are part of the Neighborhood Watch scheme and 
operate specifically to serve farm and rural land owners. There are around 800 members 
in Cambridgeshire, with 95 percent of those being farmers, so effectively it is a farm watch 
scheme. There are around 130 members in the Peterborough area, with the majority of 
those being in north and east Peterborough.

(ii) Officers have linked in with the Countryside watch co-ordinator, Stefan Gidlow. The 
Committee is asked to approve the recommendation for there to be a targeted recruitment 
campaign which will take place in the form of rural crime evenings. These will be held in 
tractor dealerships as experience has shown us that this is where the farming community 
tend to prefer.

(iii) It is further recommended that we work closely with crime prevention officers from the 
Constabulary. It has been identified that whilst these officers are visiting victims of crime 
they will be able to communicate countryside watch messages as well as promote the 
benefits of joining the scheme. There is also capacity to do joint visits which will 
demonstrate the close working relationship that exists. 

(iv) The Constabulary are increasing staff awareness of the scheme through scheduled 
training days. All shift reliefs in Peterborough will be receiving this input through an 
electronic interactive training package. This will take place in April and May. 

28



(v) With the Committee’s support the Safer Peterborough Partnership will encourage other 
agencies to do the same through sharing the training package. Not only does the package 
raise awareness of the scheme so that officers can engage with possible new members in 
an informative manner but it gives advice on crime prevention that officers can pass on. 
Finally it gives staff an insight into the work that Farm Watch does and demonstrates how 
the scheme can assist agencies with issues such as hare coursing etc.

4.2.2 Neighborhood Watch

(i) Neighbourhood Watch is about local communities working together and with the Police to 
help make their neighbourhood safer. Neighbourhood Watch schemes can help reduce 
crime in local areas, and are a great way to help people protect themselves, their family, 
friends and home. They are also an effective way to create community spirit.

(ii) There are currently 71 neighbourhood watch schemes in the rural wards of the City:
 11 in Eye & Thorney Ward
 5 in Newborough Ward
 12 in Barnack Ward
 15 in Glinton & Wittering Ward 
 28 in Northborough Ward

(iii) Where schemes work effectively with both Police and other partner agencies the areas do 
not experience as many problems as non-Neighbourhood Watch areas. The setting up of 
new schemes is led by Neighbourhood Watch with Police support and there is a 
committee for Peterborough.

(iv) The Committee is asked to approve the recommendation that a targeted campaign is 
developed to increase membership in rural communities. 

4.3 Use of volunteers (other than Specials)

4.3.1 The Committee will recall in the previous report that a volunteer scheme could be developed and 
implemented through the Council’s Community Capacity team or with our voluntary sector 
partners that would co-ordinate volunteers to patrol in rural locations. Volunteers would need to 
have some affiliation to the community/village that they are patrolling. They would be briefed by 
the Council so that they are aware of local issues and would have a single point of contact to 
report non-emergency issues back to. These would be non-confrontational roles with nothing 
more than citizen powers. Their sole purpose would be to reassure the community and report 
matters to the relevant authorities, similar to the Council’s former Street Leaders scheme.

4.3.2 The Committee is asked to approve the recommendation that officers visit Parish Councils in 
order to raise awareness of this scheme and gauge what support there would be for it. If there is 
sufficient interest this would then be piloted with feedback presented to a future Committee 
meeting.

5. IMPLICATIONS

As previously mentioned, any new schemes specific to rural communities would require 
investment of time and potentially finance, as well as significant support from rural communities.

6. CONSULTATION

The options contained in this report have been developed with the input of Cambridgeshire 
Police.

29



7. EXPECTED OUTCOMES

That officers take forward the recommendations made at the Committee meeting, and reports 
back on progress during the 2015/16 municipal year.

8. NEXT STEPS
 

That any recommendations made by the committee are acted upon.

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None

10. APPENDICES

None

30



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES

Agenda Item No. 7

16 March 2015 Public Report

Report of the Community Capacity Manager

Contact Officer – Cate Harding
Contact Details – 01733 317497

DEVELOPING A RURAL VISION AND PARISH CHARTER FOR PETERBOROUGH

1. PURPOSE

The Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities has agreed to support the refresh of the 
Rural Vision and Strategy document, originally prepared in 2008. This document has been 
prepared with a supporting action plan and Parish Charter, working in partnership with the 
Parish Liaison Forum for the Scrutiny Committee’s approval.  

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1      The Commission is recommended to approve, in principle, the final draft of the Rural Vision & 
Parish Charter 

2.2 The Commission is recommended to support a Cabinet Members Decision Notice be issued 
to authorise wider consultation with the Parish Liaison Forum in line with the principles of the 
working partnership outlined in the Parish Charter and to put forward the final 
recommendations for approval to Cabinet 

2.3 The Rural Vision will be supported by a detailed action plan, and the Commission is 
recommended to use this to inform and shape its work programme for the next municipal 
year. 

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 A Rural Working Group was originally set up in 2006, made up of representatives from 
Peterborough Parish Councils and the National Association of Local Councils.  Together, 
with the support of the Greater Peterborough Partnership, they developed the Rural Vision 
and Strategy which was then aligned to the council’s strategic priorities and measures within 
the Local Area Agreement 2007/2008.

3.2 In response to the Commission’s request at their November 2014 meeting, the Community 
Capacity Team are supporting the current Parish Liaison Working Group to refresh the Rural 
Vision and Strategy document to bring it in line with current structures, activities and 
priorities.

3.3 In support of this activity the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities agreed up to four 
members of the Parish Liaison Forum will be co-opted onto the Commission from January 
2015 to enable an aligned, positive and meaningful working relationship between the two 
parties when addressing matters of common interest.

31



4. KEY ISSUES

4.1 Each Parish Council area is unique and operates autonomously.  As part of the Parish 
Support Programme each area is encouraged to have a local strategy plan to highlight 
needs and priorities.  Certain themes however inevitably emerge across the rural 
communities that are common for all and it is these common themes that are the focus of the 
Rural Vision

5. IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The Rural Vision and Parish Charter 2015 must be developed with the full participation of the 
rural Parish Councils in Peterborough

5.2 The Rural Parish Council’s local strategies, Neighbourhood Plans and/or Forward Plans 
must be taken into consideration in the development of an overarching Rural Vision to 
ensure effective and joined up delivery of the agreed priorities.

6. CONSULTATION

6.1 To date the draft refresh of the Rural Vision for Peterborough has not been consulted upon 
beyond the members of the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities and the Parish 
Liaison Working Group. Widespread consultation will need to take place, including all 
members of the Parish Liaison Forum, to ensure completeness.

7. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 

7.1 That the Commission approves the final draft and the Parish Liaison Working Group 
oversees the delivery of the action plan, raising matters with the Commission as required.

7.2 That the Commission supports a media campaign to promote the adoption of the Rural 
Vision and Parish Charter and the valued role of Parish Councils across Peterborough.

8.         NEXT STEPS

8.1      The Parish Liaison Working Group will continue to convene on a monthly basis to oversee 
the delivery of the action plan with updates provided to the Commission as required.

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

9.1       2008 Rural Vision & Strategy 

10. APPENDICES

10.1 Draft 2015 Rural Vision & Charter

32



1

Rural Vision and Parish Charter 2015

Background

Peterborough is made up of a total of 24 wards, five of these wards can be considered rural, under the ONS 
definition which defines areas as rural if they are outside of settlements with more than 10,000 resident 
population.  These wards are Glinton and Wittering, Newborough, Northborough, Eye and Thorney, and 
Barnack.  In Peterborough, approximately 12% of the population can be considered as living in a rural ward.

The rural areas and villages of Peterborough are valued as an important asset now and for the future of 
Peterborough.  They have strong independent local identities and sense of heritage and belonging, choosing 
to retain their rural way of life, supported by their own social and economic structure (e.g. schools, church, 
pubs, small businesses), enabling their communities to be sustainable and to evolve.  

Peterborough’s rural communities, including boundary urban/rural areas offer countryside of great natural 
beauty, open landscapes, accessible green spaces rich in wildlife and areas and buildings of historical interest 
for the benefit of all.  They offer sustainable places to live and work, visit and enjoy – for their communities 
and the people of Peterborough and beyond.

Conserving this unique heritage will be an important part of the future development of Peterborough, 
contributing to our wider ambitions to ‘grow the right way’ and be recognised as the national environmental 
capital.

33



2

Sustainable Community Strategy

Peterborough’s sustainable community strategy aims to deliver a bigger and better Peterborough through 
improving the quality of life for all.  

The vision and priorities are to:

 Create opportunities, tackle inequalities
 Create strong and supportive communities
 Create the country’s environmental capital
 Deliver substantial and sustainable growth

All policies, procedures and strategies that form part of the overall community strategy will have a direct or 
indirect relevance for rural issues.  This vision and supporting Parish Charter will direct that all existing and 
emerging policies, procedures and strategies are ‘rural proofed’ to ensure the implications for rural 
communities are an integral consideration in their development and delivery.

Ownership and governance for the Rural Vision and Parish Charter for 
Peterborough 

A strong rural voice is vital to ensure that the challenges and opportunities facing rural areas are managed in 
a way that both supports and empowers rural communities and the people who live and work in them.

A Rural Vision and Strategy for Peterborough was originally developed in 2008 by a working group comprising 
Parish representatives, the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Association of Local Councils (CAPALC) and the 
Greater Peterborough Partnership (GPP).  The aim was to develop a long term and sustainable framework for 
engaging the rural communities.

Today all Parish Councils in Peterborough have the regular opportunity via the Parish Liaison Forum to network 
with peers, share information and best practise and identify and embrace opportunities for working together 
to address mutually common themes that impact across all areas.

The Parish Liaison Forum now also have a working sub group with a remit to:

 Plan and prepare the agenda for the quarterly Parish Liaison meetings, ensuring these networking 
opportunities provide educational and informed items of interest and benefit 

 Plan and prepare the Annual Parish Conference
 Support and promote the exploration of local interest groups to establish new Community Councils in 

unparished areas of the city
 Support and promote the role and opportunities of Parish/Community Councils in the current living 

and working environment
 Develop and implement the Rural Vision and Parish Charter

The Rural Vision will be delivered via the Parish Councils, communities, and the statutory, voluntary sector, 
and wider civil society sectors, all of whom will be encouraged to adopt the vision, supporting action plan and 
the Parish Charter.

34



3

Up to 4 representatives of the Parish Liaison Forum are co-opted to the Council’s Scrutiny Commission for 
Rural Communities.  This governance structure represents the mutual agreement for the City Council to work 
in partnership with the Parish Councils so that services are delivered more efficiently and meet the needs of 
the rural communities.

Parish
Liaison
Forum

Scrutiny
Commission for

Rural Communities

Parish
Councils

The Shared Vision

The Rural Vision aims to provide a framework for achieving sustainable and viable rural communities in 
Peterborough and outlines how Peterborough City Council will work in partnership with Parish Councils to 
ensure that services are delivered more effectively and meet the needs of the local rural (and urban) 
communities.

Objectives

1. To recognise and promote current activities and programmes that support rural communities
2. To identify the priorities within rural communities to inform linked strategies and plans
3. To provide baseline data and information from which to measure success
4. To develop, implement , monitor and evaluate an annual action plan to ensure continuous alignment and 

ability to influence strategic priorities locally and across the city
5. To develop a Parish Charter for Peterborough to ‘Improve joint working between the city council and Parish 

Councils so that services are delivered more efficiently and meet the needs of the local community’

Delivering the shared vision

An annually refreshed working Action Plan will reflect the strong vision of Peterborough City Council to support 
Parish Councils achieve their aim to:

 Build capacity and resilience to be self-sufficient rural communities
 Address and challenge infrastructure improvements that ensure rural communities are able to 

maximise equal liveability opportunities  

35



4

 

Common strategic priorities will be captured in the action plan under the following themed headings:

a. Transport, Utilities and Communications (incorporating:  transport networks; public realm; waste 
management; electricity, water, gas and ICT connections; public transport; road safety and traffic 
calming

b. Education and Skills (incorporating: pre-school, primary, secondary and post-16 education; 
apprenticeships)

c. Environmental Sustainability (incorporating: flood risk management; carbon emissions reduction; 
strategic green open spaces; biodiversity conservation; built environment conservation)

d. Community and Leisure (incorporating: affordable housing; community buildings; community 
safety; parks and open spaces; sports and recreational facilities; crematorium and burial grounds; 
libraries, museums and lifelong learning; public footpaths and bridleways)

e. Health and Wellbeing (incorporating: Primary Health Care facilities; emergency services
f. Economics (incorporating: social and micro enterprises; farm diversification and productivity; 

tourism, culture and heritage; support for village shops and pubs; maintenance of rural character

Reference and useful information:

For more information regarding Parish Councils, PCC Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities and CAPALC refer to: www.peterborough.gov.uk/

36

http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/


5

Parish Charter for Peterborough

Foreword

Peterborough City Council recognises the significant role that Parish Councils have in the lives of 
Peterborough’s diverse communities.  

This Charter has been developed in partnership with Peterborough’s Parish Councils and represents a mutual 
agreement to improve joint working between the city council and Parish Councils so that services are delivered 
more efficiently and meet the needs of the local community.

Cllr Nigel North, Cabinet Member for Communities and Environmental Capital.

Words from CAPALC

To be inserted

CONTENT

1. Introduction
2. Partnership Working for Communications and Engagement
3. Devolved Services and Assets
4. Finances
5. Monitoring and Evaluation
6. Key Contacts

37



6

1. Introduction

The Peterborough Parish Liaison Forum, which comprises all Parish Councils in Peterborough, together with 
the Peterborough City Council have agreed to publish this Charter, which sets out how they aim to work 
together for the benefit of local people. 

The Charter is designed to support parishes in retaining their distinctiveness while providing a framework that 
ensures opportunities are embraced and the need to build community resilience is recognised.

Peterborough City Council acknowledges the important role that Parish Councils play as the first tier of local 
government. Peterborough City Council believes that Parish Councils can be very effective by influencing and 
shaping the decisions that affect their communities in the following ways:

 They offer a means of devolving certain services and of revitalising local communities

 They can represent the views of their area and effectively influence the development of policies and 
services

 They can provide valuable feedback on how Council services are working in their area and how 
changes in policy are likely to affect the local community

Peterborough City Council wishes to strengthen and maintain the relationship with Parish Councils and the 
local communities they serve in a spirit of partnership and consultation. In turn, Parish Councils recognise the 
strategic role of Peterborough City Council and that they have to achieve a fair distribution of services across 
the city as a whole.

This Charter sets out the broad principles upon which Peterborough City Council and Parish Councils will work 
together.  All parties agree to support a delivery framework for how the relationship will work in practice.

2. Partnership Working for Communications and Engagement

Both parties will:

2.1 Advise each other in advance of key personnel changes (e.g. Council Clerk or the Head of Planning 
Services)

2.2 Make information available to each other and to the public, electronically as the preferred 
method of choice, as well as other formats

2.3 Endeavour to ensure that the customer experience is ‘right first time’ regardless of service 
approached with the enquiry

2.4 Engage with each other in advance about proposed changes to the operational services they 
provide.  This includes levels of service and/or frequency of service

2.5 Seek opportunities for economies of scale and value for money through individual, consortium or 
clustering arrangements where possible

2.6 Respect and promote the role of elected councillors as representatives of their communities
2.7 Promote active democracy to ensure communities are able to have a say and help to develop a 

shared vision, identity and sense of belonging

  

38



7

Peterborough City Council will:

2.8 Seek comments from Parish Councils before making decisions which affect the Parish Council’s 
residents or the Parish generally

2.9 Allow Parish Councils a reasonable time to make comments in response to consultations (this 
period may be determined by statutory consultation requirements)

2.10 Circulate information / news of interest to Parish Councils
2.11 Signpost customers to local Parish facilities where available
2.12 Offer support for the development of Parish Council websites where needed
2.13 Organise, via the network of the Parish Liaison Forum, information events, training and/or 

briefing sessions 
2.14 Arrange for relevant officers to attend Parish Council meetings when appropriate
2.15 Treat all Parish Councils equally on merit regardless of size
2.16 Support the exploration of establishing new Parish Councils in areas that have demonstrated a 

desire for neighbourhood governance

Parish Councils will: 

2.17 Adopt arrangements which enable them to respond to Peterborough City Council consultations in 
a timely way

2.18 Encourage direct participation from the Parish Council and their local community in the 
implementation of activities to support the Sustainable Communities Strategy

2.19 Attend information, training and briefing events organised by Peterborough City Council and 
where possible provide local venues to host these events

2.20 Nominate representatives to be co-opted to the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities
2.21 Promote the services and events of Peterborough City Council amongst the local community and 

make information available for residents via local means. 

3. Devolved Services and Assets

Peterborough City Council will:

3.1 Develop and publish criteria against which requests for the devolving of services to Parish 
Councils will be considered

3.2  Formally consider and respond to requests from Parish Councils for the devolving of services
3.3 Respond to requests from the Parish Council to ‘enhance’ a service provided by Peterborough City 

Council through payment of a contribution (or other means agreed)
3.4 Put in place formal agreements, including financial arrangements, to clarify the arrangements and 

deliver enhanced services within the agreed terms

Parish Councils will:

3.5 Prepare an appropriate business case to demonstrate how local services will be managed if 
seeking to do so or if wishing to exercise powers for the first time.  The business case must 
evidence the capacity to finance and deliver the service and evidence the benefits for the local 
community

3.6 Submit formal requests, with sufficient notice, to Peterborough City Council if it wishes to 
contribute towards an enhanced service.

39



8

4. Finances

It is noted there are no additional funds available for implementing the Charter.  The Charter is established 
with the principle of finding innovative ways of maximising contributions and benefits to make the best of 
limited resources that respond to local need in the most cost effective way.

Peterborough City Council will:

4.1 Consult on proposed changes to service provision and budget implications in a timely manner
4.2 Provide information to support Parish Councils in determining their precepts
4.3 Meet the administration and staff costs associated with elections and Neighbourhood Plan 

referendums whilst national legislation mandates the council to do so

Parish Councils will:

4.4 Provide precept information by the mutually agreed deadline
4.5 Implement financial planning procedures that demonstrate budget forecasts for a minimum of 3 

years

5. Monitoring and Evaluation

5.1 The Charter and any associated delivery framework will be reviewed on an annual basis by the 
working group of the Parish Liaison Forum.  The first review will take place in March 2016. 

6. Key Contacts

Ian Dewar- CEO, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Association of Local Councils (CAPALC)

Email: ceo@capalc.org.uk

Tel: 07802 824428

Cllr Nigel North - Cabinet Member for Communities and Environmental Capital and Chair Parish Liaison 
Forum 2014/15

Email: nigel.north@peterborough.gov.uk

Tel: 07572 463929

Henry Cark – Chair National Association of Local Councils and Chair Parish Liaison Forum Working Group

Email: henryclark@iee.org

Tel: 07708 197522

40



9

Belinda Child – PCC Head of Service, Housing and Health Improvement

Email: Belinda.child@peterborough.gov.uk

Tel: 01733 863769

Cate Harding – PCC Community Capacity Manager

Email: cate.harding@peterborough.gov.uk

Tel: 01733 317497

Caroline Rowan – PCC Assistant Community Capacity Manager

Email: caroline.rowan@peterborough.gov.uk

Tel: 01733 864095

Sylvia Radouani – PCC Community Capacity Assistant

Email: Sylvia.radouani@peterborough.gov.uk

Tel: 01733 864312

This Charter is signed by:

Chair of the Parish Liaison Forum ……………………………………………………

Chair of NALC ……………………………………………………

CEO CAPALC …………………………………………………….

Chair Parish Liaison Forum Working Group ……………………………………………………

Leader of Peterborough City Council ……………………………………………………

CEO Peterborough City Council ……………………………………………………

41



This page is intentionally left blank

42



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES

Agenda Item No. 8

16 MARCH 2015 Public Report

Report of the Director of Governance

Report Author – Dania Castagliuolo, Governance Officer
Contact Details – 01733 452347 or email dania.castagliuolo@peterborough.gov.uk

FORWARD PLAN OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This is a regular report to the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities outlining the content 
of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Commission identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions is attached at Appendix 1.  The 
Forward Plan contains those executive decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that 
the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new key decisions to be taken 
after 3 April 2015.

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions provides the Commission with the 
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these executive 
decisions, or to request further information.

3.3 If the Commission wished to examine any of the executive decisions, consideration would need 
to be given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme.

3.4 As the Forward Plan is published fortnightly any version of the Forward Plan published after 
dispatch of this agenda will be tabled at the meeting.

4. CONSULTATION

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions.

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

None

6. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of Executive Decisions

43



This page is intentionally left blank

44



PETERBOROUGH CITY 
COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN 
OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 

PUBLISHED:  6 MARCH 2015

45



FORWARD PLAN                                                                                                                                     AB
PART 1 – KEY DECISIONS
In the period commencing 28 days after the date of publication of this Plan, Peterborough City Council's Executive intends to take 'key decisions' on the issues set out below in 
Part 1.  Key decisions relate to those executive decisions which are likely to result in the Council spending or saving money in excess of £500,000 and/or have a significant impact 
on two or more wards in Peterborough.

If the decision is to be taken by an individual Cabinet Member, the name of the Cabinet Member is shown against the decision, in addition to details of the Councillor’s portfolio. If 
the decision is to be taken by the Cabinet, this too is shown against the decision and its members are as listed below:
Cllr Cereste (Leader); Cllr Elsey; Cllr Fitzgerald; Cllr Hiller, Cllr Holdich (Deputy Leader); Cllr North; Cllr Seaton; Cllr Serluca and Cllr Scott.

This Plan should be seen as an outline of the proposed decisions for the forthcoming month and it will be updated on a fortnightly basis to reflect new key-decisions.  Each new 
Plan supersedes the previous Plan and items may be carried over into forthcoming Plans.  Any questions on specific issues included on the Plan should be included on the form 
which appears at the back of the Plan and submitted to Gemma George, Senior Governance Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 
08702 388039). Alternatively, you can submit your views via e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268.

PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISION IN PRIVATE
Whilst the majority of the Executive’s business at the Cabinet meetings listed in this Plan will be open to the public and media organisations to attend, there will be some business 
to be considered that contains, for example, confidential, commercially sensitive or personal information.  In these circumstances the meeting may be held in private, and on the 
rare occasion this applies, notice will be given within Part 2 of this document, ‘notice of intention to hold meeting in private’. A further formal notice of the intention to hold the 
meeting, or part of it, in private, will also be given 28 clear days in advance of any private meeting in accordance with The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings 
and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which these decisions will be discussed (unless a notice of intention to hold the meeting in private has 
been given).

PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS
For complete transparency relating to the work of the Executive, this Plan also includes an overview of non-key decisions to be taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members, 
these decisions are listed at Part 3 and will be updated on a weekly basis.

You are entitled to view any documents listed on the Plan, or obtain extracts from any documents listed or subsequently submitted to the decision maker prior to the decision 
being made, subject to any restrictions on disclosure. There is no charge for viewing the documents, although charges may be made for photocopying or postage.  Documents 
listed on the notice and relevant documents subsequently being submitted can be requested from Gemma George, Senior Governance Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, 
Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 388038), e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268. For each decision a public report will 
be available from the Governance Team one week before the decision is taken. 

All decisions will be posted on the Council's website: www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedecisions.  If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the 'key decisions' 
outlined in this Plan, please submit them to the Governance Support Officer using the form attached.  For your information, the contact details for the Council's various service 
departments are incorporated within this Plan.

46

mailto:gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk
http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedecisions


PART 1 – FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

KEY DECISIONS FROM 3 APRIL 2015
KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Grant to Opportunity 
Peterborough for 
Peterborough DNA – 
KEY/03APR15/01
To approve continuation of 
the ‘Peterborough DNA’ 
programme in to the 
2015/16 financial year 
following receipt of a grant 
to the value of £3m from 
Innovate UK (formally the 
Technology Strategy 
Board) in March 2013; and 
delegate authority to the 
Governance Board to 
authorise the award of 
grants of up to £440,000 
for accumulated and 
prospective projects under 
the Peterborough DNA 
programme to Opportunity 
Peterborough Limited.

Councillor 
Marco Cereste
Leader and 
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Strategic 
Planning, 
Housing, 
Economic 
Development 
and Business 
Engagement

April 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Charlotte Palmer
Environment Strategy 
and Future City 
Manager
Tel: 01733 453538 
richard.hodgson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

47



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

PREVIOUSLY ADVERTISED DECISIONS
Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of Dickens Street 
Car Park - KEY/03JUL/11
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Executive Director – 
Strategic Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate and 
conclude the sale of Dickens 
Street Car Park. 
For Cabinet to consider 
future options for service 
delivery.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate.

Richard Hodgson
Head of Strategic 
Projects
Tel: 01733 384535
richard.hodgson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Sale of the Herlington 
Centre - 
KEY/21MAR14/03
Delivery of the Council’s 
capital receipts 
programme through the 
sale of the Herlington 
Centre, Orton Malborne.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Simon Webber
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384545
simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

48



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Peterborough City 
Council Customer 
Strategy 2014 - 
KEY/21MAR14/06
To approve the Customer 
Strategy. The vision is to 
provide a range of high-
quality services whilst 
maximising customer 
satisfaction and delivering 
these services through 
different channels at the 
lowest reasonable cost, 
whilst also reducing or 
diverting demand.

Cabinet June 2015 Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Adrian Chapman
Assistant Director for 
Communities and 
Targeted Services
Tel: 01733 863887
Adrian.chapman@pete
rborough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Formalise Integrated 
Community Equipment 
Service Funding and 
Commissioning 
Arrangements - 
KEY/18APR14/01
To formalise integrated 
community equipment 
service joint funding 
arrangements.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care

March 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Nick Blake
Head of 
Commissioning for 
Older People, Physical 
Disabilities and 
Sensory Impairment
Tel: 01733 452406
nick.blake@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

49



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Award of Contract for 
Build of a Waste 
Transfer Station - 
KEY/18APR14/02
To award a contract for 
the build of a waste 
transfer station.

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet Member 
for Street Scene, 
Waste 
Management and 
Communications

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Paul Robertson
Waste Project Officer
Tel: 01733 864740
paul.robertson@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Award of Contract for 
Provision of a 
Household Recycling 
Centre - 
KEY/18APR14/03
To award a contract for 
the provision of a 
household recycling 
centre.

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet Member 
for Street Scene, 
Waste 
Management and 
Communications

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Paul Robertson
Waste Project Officer
Tel: 01733 864740
paul.robertson@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Print Managed Services 
- KEY/13JUN14/01
To enable Council officers to 
be able to print, copy and 
scan.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ricky Fuller
Head of Strategic 
Commissioning/Transfo
rmation
Tel: 01733 452482
ricky.fuller@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

50



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Southfields Primary 
School Expansion - 
KEY/05SEP14/01
To authorise the 
construction of an 
extension to 
accommodate the 
expansion of Southfields 
Primary School.

Councillor John 
Holdich
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 2015 Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Emma Everitt
Project Support Officer
Tel: 01733 863660
emma.everitt@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Fit to Rent Scheme – 
KEY/17OCT14/01
To improve standards and 
management of properties 
in the private rented 
sector.

Cabinet September 
2015

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Belinda Child
Housing Strategic 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863769
Belinda.child@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Residential Care – 
KEY14/19NOV14/01
To seek authority for the 
Director of Adult Social Care 
to make residential care 
placements outside of the 
Council’s contract 
regulations whilst a long term 
solution to purchasing 
residential care is developed.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care

March 2015 Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Rob Henchy
Commissioning 
Manager
Tel: 01733 452429
Rob.henchy@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

51



Extra Care Housing – 
KEY/12DEC14/02
To approve the award of 
contracts to provide 
personal care and support 
at five extra care 
schemes.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care

March 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Residents and 
carers, housing 
providers, care 
providers and 
relevant internal 
departments.

Nick Blake
Head of 
Commissioning
Tel: 01733 452486
Nickolas.blake@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Advocacy Services – 
KEY/12DEC14/03
To approve the award of 
contract for the adult 
social care advocacy 
services.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care

March 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

People utilising 
the services, 
partnership 
boards and 
relevant internal 
departments.

Nick Blake
Head of 
Commissioning
Tel: 01733 452486
Nickolas.blake@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Hampton Gardens 
Secondary School – 
KEY/12DEC14/04
To approve the award of 
the contract for the design 
and build of the school.

Councillor John 
Holdich 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

June 2015 Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Emma Everitt
Project Officer (Schools 
Infrastructure)
Tel: 01733 863660
Emma.everitt@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Council Server Estate - 
KEY/26DEC14/01
To approve the move of 
on-site Council servers to 
an off-site provider. 

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Godfrey
ICT Strategy, 
Infrastructure and 
Programmes Manager
Tel: 01733 317989
richard.godfrey@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

52



Nene Park Academy – 
KEY/06JAN15/01
Novation of the Design 
and Build Contract from 
PCC to Cambridge 
Meridian Academies Trust 
(CMAT).

Councillor John 
Holdich
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 2015 Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Howard
Head of Schools 
Infrastructure
Tel: 01733 863976
Brian.howard@peterbo
rough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

53



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Turning Point Extension 
Contract – 
KEY/06JAN15/03
To approve the supported 
living contract that permits 
for another one year 
extension for 2015/16.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care

April 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Mubarak Darbar
Head of 
Commissioning 
Learning Disabilities
Tel: 01733 452509
Mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

S75 Learning Disabilities 
(Renew with CPCCG) – 
KEY/06JAN15/04
To approve the new S75 
agreement.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care

April 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Mubarak Darbar
Head of 
Commissioning 
Learning Disabilities
Tel: 01733 452509
Mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Day Opportunities Under 
65 Transformation (In 
House) – 
KEY/06JAN15/05
To approve proposals 
following consultation.

Cabinet 20 March 
2015

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Mubarak Darbar
Head of 
Commissioning 
Learning Disabilities
Tel: 01733 452509
Mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Day Opportunities Under 
65 Tender (Independent) 
– KEY/06JAN15/06
To approve the tender for 
the services. 

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care

August 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Mubarak Darbar
Head of 
Commissioning 
Learning Disabilities
Tel: 01733 452509
Mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

54



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

West Town Primary 
School - 
KEY/06JAN15/07
To authorise payment of 
the Council’s contribution 
to the rebuild of West 
Town Primary School 
under the Priority Schools 
Building Programme.

Councillor John 
Holdich
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 2015 Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Alison Chambers
Principal Assets Officer 
(Schools)
Tel: 01733 863975 
Alison.chambers@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Peterborough Visitor 
Economy Strategy 2015-
2020 (Draft) – 
KEY/06JAN15/13
To approve the strategy 
and recommend that 
Council adopt as a major 
policy document.

Cabinet 20 March 
2015

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Douglas Gyte
Strategic Tourism 
Manager
Tel: 01733 453490
Douglas.gyte@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Developer Contributions 
Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) – 
KEY/06JAN15/14
For Cabinet to approve 
the supplementary 
planning document.

Cabinet April 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brendan Troy
Principal Infrastructure 
& Monitoring Officer
Tel: 01733 863773
Brendan.troy@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

55



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Extension to the Adult 
Community Drug 
Services and Alcohol 
Misuse Services 
Contract (Crime 
Reduction Initiatives) – 
KEY/06FEB15/01
To extend the contract for 
a further 12 months.

Councillor Nigel 
North
Cabinet Member 
for Communities 
and 
Environment 
Capital

March 2015 Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Oliver Hayward
Head of Business 
Management
Tel: 01733 863910
Oliver.hayward@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Extension to the Public 
Health Services Contract 
(Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough 
Foundation Trust) – 
KEY/06FEB15/02 
To extend the contract to 
31 March 2016.

Councillor 
Marco Cereste
Leader and 
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Strategic 
Planning, 
Housing, 
Economic 
Development 
and Business 
Engagement

March 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Oliver Hayward
Head of Business 
Management
Tel: 01733 863910
Oliver.hayward@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Street Scene Services – 
KEY/13FEB15/01
To approve investment in a 
number of areas in order to 
move to a more efficient and 
cost effective service.

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet Member 
for Street Scene, 
Waste 
Management and 
Communications

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Proposals formed 
part of Phase 1 
budget document 
public consultation.

James Collingridge
Amey Partnership 
Manager 
james.collingridge@peter
borough.gov.uk
01733 864736

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

56



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Parks, Trees and Open 
Spaces – 
KEY/13FEB15/02
To approve the changes to 
the way services relating to 
the city’s parks, trees and 
open spaces are provided.

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet Member 
for Street Scene, 
Waste 
Management and 
Communications

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Proposals formed 
part of Phase 1 
budget document 
public consultation.

James Collingridge
Amey Partnership 
Manager 
james.collingridge@peter
borough.gov.uk
01733 864736

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Classroom Extension 
and Associated Works 
Heltwate School - 
KEY/06MAR15/01
To authorise the construction 
of an extension at Heltwate 
School and give authority to 
the Executive Director of 
Resources to award the 
construction contract within 
the approved budget.

Councillor John 
Holdich
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 2015 Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Alison Chambers
Assets and School 
Place Planning Officer
Tel: 01733 863975
Alison.chambers@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Cardea Community 
Pavillion – 
KEY/06MAR15/02
Award of contract for the 
construction of a 
Community Pavilion on 
the Cardea site, including 
the approval of property, 
legal and financial 
arrangements for various 
enabling agreements with 
third parties. 

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Howard
Head of Schools 
Infrastructure
Tel: 01733 863979
Brian.howard@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

57



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Future Model for 
Peterborough Libraries 
– KEY/06MAR15/03
To approve the future 
model for libraries.

Cabinet 20 March 
2015

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Lisa Roberts
Culture and 
Partnership Manager
Tel: 01733 452386
Lisa.roberts@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk   

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Amey Phase 2 Budget 
Savings – 
KEY/06MAR15/04
To confirm the Phase 2 
budget savings.

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Dominic Hudson
Strategic Partnerships 
Manager
01733 452384
Dominic.hudson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Serco Phase 2 Budget 
Savings – 
KEY/06MAR15/05
To confirm the Phase 2 
budget savings.

Councillor David 
Seaton

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Dominic Hudson
Strategic Partnerships 
Manager
01733 452384
Dominic.hudson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Vivacity Phase 2 Budget 
Savings – 
KEY/06MAR15/06
To confirm the Phase 2 
budget savings.

Councillor Lucia 
Serluca

March 2015 Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Dominic Hudson
Strategic Partnerships 
Manager
01733 452384
Dominic.hudson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

58



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

St Michaels Expansion – 
KEY/06MAR15/07
Award of contract for the 
expansion of St Michaels 
Church School to a 2FE, 
including the approval of 
property, legal and 
financial arrangements for 
various enabling 
agreements and third 
parties.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Howard
Head of Schools 
Infrastructure
01733 863976
Brian.howard@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Fletton Quays – 
KEY/06MAR15/08
Disposal of Fletton Quays 
land and property assets 
to Peterborough 
Investment Partnership.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Hodgson, 
Head of Strategic 
Projects
01733 384535
Richard.hodgson@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Pleasure Fair Meadow – 
KEY/06MAR15/09
Disposal of Pleasure Fair 
Meadow Car Park to 
Peterborough Investment 
Partnership.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Hodgson, 
Head of Strategic 
Projects
01733 384535
Richard.hodgson@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Wirrina Car Park – 
KEY/06MAR15/10
Disposal of Wirrina Car 
Park to Peterborough 
Investment Partnership.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Hodgson, 
Head of Strategic 
Projects
01733 384535
Richard.hodgson@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

59



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Section 75 Agreement 
Better Care Fund – 
KEY/20MAR15/01
To approve the Section 75 
Better Care Fund 
agreement with the CCG.

Councillor 
Marco Cereste
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Strategic 
Planning, 
Housing, 
Economic 
Development 
and Business 
Engagement

March 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Will Patten It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

60



PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISIONS IN PRIVATE

KEY DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN IN PRIVATE

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

NONE AT THE CURRENT TIME

61



PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS

NON-KEY DECISIONS 

DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Peterborough 
Investment Partnership 
Plans 
To approve the 
Peterborough Investment 
Partnership Plans.

Councillor 
David Seaton
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Leader of Council 
and relevant 
senior officers.

Simon Machen
Corporate Director 
Growth and 
Regeneration
Tel: 01733 453475
Simon.machen@peterb
orough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Compliance with 
Regulation 13 European 
Waste Framework 
Directive 2008
To approve the report 
indicating compliance with 
Regulation 13 of the 
European Waste 
Framework Directive 2008 
as transposed into English 
Law by the Waste 
England and Wales 
Regulations 2011 (as 
amended in 2012).

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet 
Member for 
Street Scene, 
Waste 
Management 
and 
Communicati
ons

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Pearn
Waste Partnership 
Manager
Tel: 01733 864739
Richard.pearn@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

62



Flood Risk Management 
Strategy
To approve the Strategy 
and recommend its 
adoption to Council.

Cabinet 7 April 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Julia Chatterton
Flood and Water 
Management Officer
Tel: 01733 452620
Julia.chatterton@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Peterborough 
Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
Charging Schedule 
For Cabinet to approve 
the Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
Charging Schedule and 
recommend its adoption 
by Council.

Cabinet 7 April 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brendan Troy
Principal Infrastructure 
& Monitoring Officer
Tel: 01733 863773
Brendan.troy@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Personal Budgets in 
Peterborough
To agree to adopt 
Peterborough’s Personal 
Budget Policy Statement 
as part of the revised 
statutory duties that apply 
to the Council as part of 
the SEND reforms, under 
the Children and Families 
Act 2014.

Councillor 
John Holdich
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 2015 Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Carrie Gamble
Commissioner
Tel: 01733 863931
Carrie.gamble@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Post 16 Transport Policy
To approve updates to the 
Post 16 Transport policy.

Councillor 
John Holdich
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 2015 Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Sara Thompson
Team Manager 
(Passenger Transport 
Operations)
Tel: 01733 317452
Sarah.thompson@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

63



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Sale of Greenwood 
House 
Delivery of the Council’s 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
sale of Greenwood House, 
South Parade.

Councillor 
David Seaton
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Simon Webber
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384545
simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

64



DIRECTORATE RESPONSIBILITIES

RESOURCES DEPARTMENT Executive Director's Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Strategic Finance
Internal Audit
Schools Infrastructure (Assets and School Place Planning)
Corporate Property
Waste and Energy
Strategic Client Services (Enterprise Peterborough / Vivacity / SERCO including Customer Services, ICT and Business Support)

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB
Adult Services and Communities (Adult Social Care Operations, Adult Social Care and Quality Assurance, Adult Social Care Commissioning, Early Help – Adults, 
Children and Families, Housing and Health Improvement, Community and Safety Services, Offender Services)
Children’s Services and Safeguarding (Children’s Social Care Operations, Children’s Social Care Quality Assurance, Safeguarding Boards – Adults and 
Children’s, Child Health, Clare Lodge (Operations), Access to Resources)
Education, People Resources and Corporate Property (Special Educational Needs and Inclusion, School Improvement, City College Peterborough, Pupil Referral 
Units, Schools Infrastructure)
Business Management and Commercial Operations (Commissioning, Recruitment and Retention, Clare Lodge (Commercial), Early Years and Quality 
Improvement)

GOVERNANCE DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Legal and Democratic Services 
Human Resources (Business Relations, HR Policy and Rewards, Training and Development, Occupational Health and Workforce Development)
City Services and Communications (Markets and Street Trading, City Centre Management including Events, Regulatory Services, Parking Services, Vivacity 
Contract, CCTV and Out of Hours Calls, Marketing and Communications, Tourism and Bus Station, Resilience)
Performance and Information (Performance Management, Information Governance, Systems Support Team, Coroner’s Office, Freedom of Information)

  GROWTH AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT Director’s Office Stuart House, St Johns Street, Peterborough, PE1 5DD
Development and Construction (Development Management, Planning Compliance, Building Control)
Sustainable Growth Strategy (Strategic Planning, Housing Strategy and Affordable Housing, Climate Change and Environment Capital, Natural and Built 
Environment)
Opportunity Peterborough
Peterborough Highway Services (Network Management, Highways Maintenance, Street Naming and Numbering, Street Lighting, Design and Adoption of Roads, 
Drainage and Flood Risk Management, Transport Policy and Sustainable Transport, Public Transport)
Peterborough Investment Partnership

65



T
his page is intentionally left blank

66


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 12 January 2015
	4 East Coast Main Line (ECML) Level Crossing Closure Programme
	4. Appendix 1 - Planning Report
	4. Appendix 1 Level Crossing location plan
	4. Appendix 1 - Plan 1 level crossing closures
	4. Appendix 1 - Plan 2 level crossing closures
	4. Appendix 1 - Plan 3 level crossing closures

	5 Update on Superfast Broadband in Rural Areas
	6 Keeping Rural Communities Safe
	7 Developing a Rural Vision and Parish Charter for Peterborough
	Appendix 1 - Draft Rural Vision refresh 2015 - 150316

	8 Forward Plan of Executive Decisions
	8. Appendix 1 - Forward Plan of Executive Decisions


